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Association for Assistance Provision to the Mentally 
Challenged Persons Pearl from Srbobran and
Caritas from Novi Sad founded day care centers for 
persons with mental disabilities and autism, while 
including their families in activity plans and adjusting 
therapy programs to the individual needs of users. 
The Center for the Support of Women from Kikinda 
and Women in Action from Velika Plana provided 
psychosocial support for female victims of violence 
and the Committee for Human Rights from Niš has 
obtained the allocation of funds from the municipal 
budget for removing obstacles for persons with 
disabilities from public institutions facilities in the 
city.

More than 12,000 citizens joined Green List of 
Serbia’s campaign Get Planet Wise!, following 
two years of support to develop a network of 
environmental organizations.  The network engaged 
in issues around waste disposal and selection, 
contributed to raising awareness on the importance 
of recycling and responsible waste management.

The fourth year of delivering the VIRTUS award has 
revealed that the concept of corporate philanthropy 
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Dear friends,

In addition to a long and difficult process of 
transition in Serbia, this year the country suffered 
the consequences of global financial crisis, which 
is increasingly affecting civil society. We believe 
supporting and encouraging citizens and their 
initiatives, as well as the promotion of solidarity are 
necessary more than ever, which in turn makes our 
role more complex and critical.

This year we have put joint efforts into securing 
support for citizens’ initiatives that are responsibe 
for progress in their communities and better life 
therein. Through Grant Programs we supported 86 
new projects that contributed to improvements in 
46 local communities. With Eko-Kult’s initiative, 
an old bicycle path was renovated motivating the 
citizens of Zrenjanin to dedicate their time to 
recreation; Belgrade’s IDE Group has organized 
creative activities for children at the Shelter for 
the Emergency Protection of Abused Children 
and Roma Women Association Nada has provided 
education in the field of social protection for Roma 
women in Aleksinac and surrounding areas. The 

is expanding in Serbia and that corporate giving is 
slowly becoming regular practice for companies. 
Conducting surveys regarding the public attitudes 
on individual giving we prepared the ground for 
initiation of programs that should revive individual 
philanthropy in Serbia. In addition, we have worked 
with organizations to build external support for their 
work, making them more sustainable.

Finally, after our longtime engagement with the 
Ministry of Culture and other partners, a new Law 
on Endowments and Foundations was adopted. 
It includes a more favorable framework for the 
development of endowments and philanthropy in 
Serbia.

Miodrag ShresthaBranislav Ivin

We give our thanks for the loyal support to grant 
beneficiaries, to our advisors, members of the Grant 
Committees, employees, partners and donors. Their 
dedication and belief in progress encourage our 
enthusiasm and persistence.

Cordially,

FOREWORD



We provide support and assistance 
where there is will and potential.

We believe in people, their desire and ability to do a lot 
for themselves and otheres. this is why we support active 

involvement in the improvement of life in their communities.

/06 /07

Annual report 2010  /  Balkan community initiatives fund Annual report 2010  /  Balkan community initiatives fund

BCIF UK was established at a 
peace convention in London 
in 1999, where Jenny Hyatt, a 
consultant from the United 
Kingdom, spoke against the 
NATO bombing. £2,000.00 in 
voluntary contributions at this 
conference comprised BCIF’s 
starting funds.
Jenny and her colleagues, who 

worked in Central and Eastern Europe, used this money for  a small 
grants program for local communities in Serbia and Montenegro. 
After five years of work, BCIF UK ended its mission, entrusting further 
action to a locally registered BCIF foundation, which continued work 
in Serbia and Montenegro. The Montenegro office became separate in 
2007 with our support, continuing to work as a distinct foundation – 
fAKT.

With eleven years of experience in supporting community initiative 
in Serbia, BCIF continues to work as one of the few independent 
domestic, non-profit foundations and the only foundation that deals 
with the development of local communities.

BCIF works in three program areas:

• Grant Programs
• Development Programs
• Local Philanthropy Development

ABOUT BCIF

So far we have supported more than 650 initiatives through 
donations with app. 3 million euros.



BCIF‘s main mission with Grant programs is 
to secure financial aid for people prepared to 
engage in solving a problem in their place of 
residence and making life better for themselves 
and their neighbors. BCIF provides financial 
support to carry out initiatives and activities 
coming from people in the local communities. 
It is imperative that these activities reach as 
many people and community actors as possible, 
and are in the spirit of solidarity, tolerance and 
openness.

Through Development Programs BCIF 
enables civil society organizations to exchange 
experience, to connect around common topics, 
create networks and strengthen action with 
potential to bring about significant change on 
a national level. BCIF offers capacity building 
opportunities, wherein organizations develop 
alternative problem solving skills for their 
communities. They work to realize their ideas in 
the best possible ways, collect additional funds, 
connect with like-minded individuals with 
similar ideas and challenges, and continuously 
improve.

Local Philanthropy development is devoted 
to promoting the idea of giving for the common 
good by companies, individuals and all society 
actors. BCIF encourages organizations to fight 
for the sustainability of their initiatives by 
relying on their own forces and funds.
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The primary program area of BCIF encompasses 
support to organizations of the civil society and 
informal groups, by providing grants, training 
and technical assistance for carrying out local 
initiatives with varying goals and target groups. 
All projects supported by BCIF within the 
Grant Programs have the following in common: 
campaigns are initiated by active and associated 
citizens in local communities; citizens‘associations 
and informal groups rely on local resources and 
potential; they include the local community in 
campaigns and cooperate with other actors; the 
issues they are engaged in are of significance to the 
wider community.
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Throughout 2010 we supported 86 new projects in 
46 communities in Serbia within the following grant 
programs:

Active communities
(maximum amount of grant up to EUR 3,500.00)
Program not limited by topic that encourages a more 
active involvement of citizens in solving problems in 
their communities.

/10
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GRANT 
PROGRAMS

Advocacy in local communities
(maximum amount of grant up to USD 12,000.00)
Program that encourages organizations to develop 
initiatives aimed at an important problem in the 
local community and to influence decision-makers in 
choosing the appropriate solution by inspiring active 
participation of citizens in promoting the solution.

Social transition
(maximum amount of grant up to EUR 15,000.00)
Program assists the development of social services 
to strengthen vulnerable social groups and 
promote their inclusion into community life.

Centrifuge
(maximum amount of grant up to EUR 4,000.00)
Program that supports youth organizations in the 
development of innovative cultural activities, with 
active involvement of peers and with a goal of 
enriching the cultural and social life outside major 
urban centers.

NUMBER OF GRANDS
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A cultural and historical treasure – Roman 
thermes from the 4th century A.D. – was lying in 
the very center of the City of Čačak under black 
bags full of garbage, disposed plastic bottles and 
construction material debris, unknown to the very 
citizens of Čačak, as well as to the larger public.

This archeological site, as proof of existing 
civilization in this area at the end of the 
3rd and the beginning of the 4th century 
A.D., was revived thanks to the initiative 
of the Democratic Volunteer Action DEVA, 
organization from Čačak. 
At the same time, this revived the creative 
spirit of citizens of Čačak. The site, cleaned and 
rearranged thanks to the engagement of a large 
number of citizens, resurfaced and become the 

This six-month activity has awaken the citizens‘ initiative and activism, which was not developed that much 
in Čačak, and has sparked interest in new projects, in volunteering, in organizing new associations. After a 

long time, a platform of the Youth Council in the Assembly of the City of Čačak was organized, on which 
young people were able to lay out problems and possible solutions and had the opportunity to be heard by 

the decision-makers and people from the local community. The work on this project has opened some other 
possibilities and opportunities for young people in Čačak. – are the main impressions of Jelena Šunderić 

from the Democratic Volunteer Action DEVA.

pride of Čačak as a valuable cultural heritage site. 
Through numerous suggestions, the citizens also 
participated in promoting the site and making it 
popular.

By participating in public discussion they 
presented ideas on the future and potential of 
the site, and on the future of important cultural 
content and economically unused potential of the 
City of Čačak.

In 2010 through the Active Communities Program 
BCIF supported 26 projects by civil society 
organizations and informal groups. total funding 
allocated to such projects exceeded €81,000. By 
supporting thematically diverse projects, BCIF 
assisted in nurturing citizens‘ initiatives and 
strengthening the belief that with united action 
they can lead to the change in their reality and to 
solving of problems in their community.
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The Association for support of children in out-of-
family upbringing FICE SRBIJA has developed the 
concept Family Together. FICE became the pioneer 
in the field of social care by providing a completely 
new service in Serbia – family group conference, 
which has become an internationally recognized 
method of social work. The entire concept relies 
on the strength of the family itself to reach the 
solution, with as little support from the social 
protection system as possible. This service is most 
needed by families in crises, and is mainly focused 
on one family member which needs support. Most 
frequently it is the child or young person with a 
disability or behavior disorder. The strength of this 
concept lies in the fact that the family itself reaches 
the solution, during private time and within the 
family environment, with only basic guidelines 
provided by an independent coordinator. An 

In supporting 23 projects withing the program of Social Transition, with the total amount of 
over 203,000.00 euros, BCIF helped organizations to develop social services for marginalized 
and vulnerable social groups and thus enrich the life of children without parental care, 
disabled persons, victims of sexual violence, and offer them a new chance for a different and 
better life.

At the very beginning we expected that the application of the Family Together concept would be a good chance 
for starting to introduce innovative practice on the local level, but we got much more. The support for the Family 

Together concept, which initiated the process of introducing the family conference model into our family care 
system, has enabled to enrich services in our impoverished and somewhat rigid social protection system, as 

well as to present the advantages of alternative modes of solving family crises and problems. At the same time, 
we have achieved cooperation with the institutions of the system and made progress in introducing new and 

efficient practice, and by this, we hope, we have succeeded in influencing changes in the family social protection 
system. Your support contributed to our easier overcoming obstacles that are still in front of us, as the faith in the 

organizations of the civil society in Serbia and their strength to make change is still small. – was expressed by 
Željka Burgund, President of the Association FICE.

inspiring example of a successful family conference 
is of an extended family making the decision to 
offer constant support to one Roma young man 
with Down syndrome, in spite of his permanent 
placement in an institution.

Aside from introducing innovative approaches 
into providing social services, the Family Together 
project influences potential changes in the social 
protection system. With further application this 
service may bring a true revolution in the process 
of deinstitutionalization in Serbia. Besides that, 
this concept also urges changes in the work and 
way of thinking of experts in relation to the usual 
intervention in the case of family problems, and 
motivates families themselves to reach for what are 
the best, and at the same time more permanent, 
solutions for them.
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Another success of the musical was the brilliant performance of Aksentije Ivanović (a young person with 
Down syndrome), which lead the Kruševac Theater to give him a role in one of its upcoming plays. 

The play Wonderland joined young people with intellectual difficulties with their other peers through dance, 
acting and playing and has shown that socializing and creativity do not see differences or boundaries.

They came out with a musical titled Wonderland 
(Zemlja čuda), which they prepared together with 
several young persons with intellectual difficulties. 
Besides detailed rehearsals, they performed 
the musical together in front of an audience in 
Kruševac, Aleksandrovac, Trstenik and Brus. 
Extraordinary interest expanded the performance 
to other cities and six new performances. These 
initially unplanned performances included 
participation at the first inclusive musical festival 
in Kragujevac. Wonderland was not only greeted 
with the very positive audience reactions, but also 
with support from the local community, individuals, 
institutions and companies. As a result, more 
than €1,500.00 in additional funding helped the 
realization of the musical.

Associating with friends and preparing together influenced me to become a completely different person. I have met 
the honest, just, unspoiled souls of young people with special needs and, perhaps what is most important, what I 
have learned from them, which is the ode to joy of life. – are the words of one of the female participants in the 
organization and performance of the musical.

With the Centrifuge program, which represents an example of successful 
cooperation between the non-profit and the business sector, for the third 
year in a row BCIF and Erste bank JSC. Novi Sad support projects for youth 
creativity and encourage young people to create innovative activities in their 

communities. Out of 71 projects submitted in this year’s competition, 7 high quality projects were 
supported with over €21,000.00.

The organization Palestra attempted to respond to the lack of cultural programs for young people with 
intellectual difficulties in Kruševac.  With steadfast work and organization of recreational and cultural 
activities for this vulnerable group, young activists of Palestra came to a creative response to the insufficient 
number of cultural contents intended for this portion of the young population.
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By means of this program area BCIF strives to support the collaborative efforts of local 
organizations to influence solving problems at a national level. In addition to grant provision, 
BCIF provides training and facilitates the process of cooperation and networking between 
organizations and the relevant decision-makers.

Green List of Serbia, is a network of environmental 
organizations founded in 2009 that was able to 
connect civil society organizations dedicated to 
solving the problem of waste management in 
several local communities, and raising it to the 
national level. With the yearly campaign titled Get 
Planet Wise!, which encompasses citizens‘ activities 
in 12 cities, as well as activities on the national 
level, the organizations divert attention to a large 
problem in Serbia – insufficiently regulated waste 
management.

DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAMS

Throughout 2010, Green List of Serbia (a network 
of local environmental organizations from 12 cities) 
and BCIF, in partnership with the Institute for 
Sustainable Communities (ISC), USAID and Telenor 
Foundation, continued with the national campaign 
Get Planet Wise! Recycle to solve the problem of 

Based on the survey that was carried out and the data received from the action Starve your garbage bin on the 
quantity and type of waste in 12 local communities, the campaign Get Planet Wise! Recycle 2010 has shown there 
is clear will from citizens for recycling programs to be started. However, the lack of infrastructure, organized and 
systematic educational activities, as well as a sporadically developed interest in organized gathering of secondary 
raw materials, have shown in which direction, in the future, these and similar campaigns should develop, both on 

the national and local level. – said Zoran Simović from the Eco Club Green Road signs from Raška.

waste disposal in Serbia. Conditions for selection and 
sorting of waste were created, as they are necessary 
preconditions for the recycling process. Close to 6,000 
citizens participated in environmental workshops, in 
collecting, sorting and recycling waste in 12 cities in 
Serbia, realized within the campaign.



More than 1,000 children from around Serbia 
participated in the day-long activities, learning 
about environmental protection through games 
and creativity. These activities were assisted by 
ArtEko robot recycling containers and jugglers 
with envrionmentally themed performances. The 
campaign was also joined by representatives of 
the business sector, and the private sector with 
companies such as Telenor, Coca-Cola, Ernst and 
Young, Božić i sinovi (BiS) and others.

The cyclist Eco-Caravan had twice as many 
participants in 2010. There were 11 girls among 
the participants, one of which was from the 
Netherlands. Passing through 11 cities in Serbia 
(Vranje, Vučje, Leskovac, Niš, Knjaževac, Zaječar, 
Bor, Žagubica, Petrovac, Kostolac, Bela Crkva, 
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In three months of campaign, Green List of Serbia has succeeded in mobilizing over 6,000 citizens who where directly 
involved in our activities. An encouraging fact is that a large number of citizens of Serbia were ready to engage in 
activities with the goal to promote waste selection and recycling. I think that this time the citizens have sent a clear 
message to the competent institutions that they want to live in a country where there are conditions for recycling old 
newspapers, plastic bottles and other reusable waste – stressed the coordinator of the campaign Get Planet Wise! 
Recycle, Vladimir Radojičić.

Pančevo and Belgrade) in 12 days, carrying 
specially designed billboards with photographs, 
30 cyclists were transmitting environmental 
messages on the importance of recycling. By 
attracting the attention of citizens, the Caravan 
publicly gave the message to competent 
institutions, the business sector, the media and to 
the broader public about the significance of waste 
selection and the need to intensify their role in 
resolving the problem of waste management. The 
Caravan managed to attract all ages – the oldest 
participant was 67 years old, while the youngest 
was 18.

In two years of its duration, the campaign Get 
Planet Wise! Recycle was joined by more than 
12,000 citizens through activities of selection and 
disposal of waste and spreading the news on the 
importance of recycling.

On World Environment Day, BCIF, Green List 
of Serbia, Young Explorers of Serbia and the 
Scout Federation of Serbia organized a large 
environmental campaign in Belgrade titled June 
5th – My Day. With participation from a large 
number of citizens, a oversized sign for recycling 
was formed on the Square of the Republic. From 
there the walk down Knez Mihailova Street 
towards Kalemegdan began, as a symbolic message 

to both decision-makers and citizens, about the 
importance of active involvement in resolving the 
problem of waste in Serbia.

The end of the walk in Kalemegdan marked the 
commencement of various activities at six different 
venues dedicated to waste selection, biodiversity, 
natural habitats, games, songs and juggling.
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Local Philanthropy Development is a 
program area of BCIF for the development 
of corporate and individual philanthropy, 
for advocating A More Favorable 
Legislative Framework, for providing 
support to civil society organizations 
in establishing sustainabile practices. In 
carrying out this program, BCIF is guided 
by the idea that the civil society in Serbia 
should turn more to local sources of 
funding.

LOCAL 
PHILANTHROPY 
DEVELOPMENT

From September to December 2010, visits to schools 
and conversations with future young philanthropists 
about the meaning of giving were organized. Meetings 
with citizens during street campaigns and discussions 
about the meaning of the action and visits to the media 
and cooperation with companies on including their 
employees in this and similar actions were organized as 
well.

After a year-long commitment from BCIF and a group 
of interested foundations and organizations, a new Law 
on Endowments and Foundations was finally adopted 
in November 2010. In cooperation with the Ministry 
of Culture, BCIF coordinated the Working Group that 
created the first draft law. This Law regulates the work of 
endowments and foundations in a more contemporary 
manner, in accordance with the best European practices 
and contains a framework with greater incentive for the 
development of endowments and philanthropy in Serbia.

Considering it important for communities to rely 
on internal potential and for organizations to build 
the base of their supporters more often in the very 
environment where they carry out their activities, BCIF 
gives incentive to the organizations of the civil society 
through educational programs in the area of fundraising 
from local sources and awarding grants for carrying 
out concrete actions. In order to support organizations 
BCIF carries out Fundraising from Local Sources 
program, which educated 25 organizations as to the link 
between strategic planning and the plan for fundraising. 
From this, seven organizations successfully carried 
out campaigns in local communities and collected 
funds for their work with over 7,000.00 euros in 2010. 
BCIF provided the mentioned organizations grants for 
campaigns in local communities which presented a 
platform for fundraising on both individual and business 
levels.

For the purpose of developing individual philanthropy, 
in 2010 BCIF initiated the campaign 

Penny is not petty! 
Giving hand, joyous heart. 

The goal was to raise 
consciousness of the 
importance of giving for 
the common good by 
individuals, including 
individuals in activities 
which contribute to the 
progress of the community and bringing the work of 
foundations closer to citizens. Under the slogan Penny 
is Not Petty! the funds needed for the work of clubs 
for children coming from disfunctional families under 
patronage of the Moonlight foundation from Subotica 
were raised.

For years now, BCIF has supported cooperation between the business and non-profit sectors in the region. 
Accordingly, in 2010 the fourth Virtus award was awarded to companies that have contributed to the 
development of their communities in the most responsible manner.
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The organization Apsart from Belgrade collected 
funds for furnishing an arts-and-crafts workshop 
for the female block at the department of drug 
addiction in the Special Prison Hospital in Belgrade. 
The Association for Help to Mentally Disabled 
Persons Blue Bird collected funds from individual 
donors for cabinetwork in the residential unit with 
support and short-term accommodation, and in 
the same manner Zlatibor Circle secured funds for 
the continuation of work of the day care center for 
children with special needs at the Dimitrije Tucović 
elementary school in Čajetina. In addition, the 
Humanitarian Association Bethesda collected funds 
for the reconstruction of playgrounds as part of 
the day care center, giving the users (children with 
disabilities) additional space to work on developing 
basic motor skills through play.

Having in mind the situation in a small 
community like Bačka Topola, the success of the 
action of the Humanitarian Association Betežda 
surpassed expectations. Instead of planned 
1,000.00 euros, 1,600.00 euros was collected. The 
majority of funds were collected from individuals 

We believe that an extraordinary and unexpected success has been accomplished thanks to the good reputation of the 
organization in our environment – the majority of citizens know and appreciate our work. We believed in our success 

from the very beginning, and our drive grew with every positive response and support we received, which motivated all 
members of the organization to get activated. We have realized the manifold and mutual benefit from fundraising from 
individuals: the organization gets the opportunity to develop and grow, and the citizens feel well as they certainly know 
that their donation has been used for a good cause. We believe in our strength to continue with this initiative, with the 

motto We ought to dream, but within reality. – said Roža Cipo, Secretary of Betežda.

– from citizens and representatives of the business 
sector, in direct contact and by providing detailed 
information about the intended purpose of the 
collected funds.

A big part of the community answered the call 
for cooperation, so charity boxes were posted 
around the whole city: at the photographers, in 
the pharmacy, bicycle store, technical goods store, 
School of Agriculture. The Youth Tolerance Camp, 
which gathers young people and visitors from 
abroad, enabled the installation of the boxes, while 
the pensioners gave support during the celebration 
of the International Day of the Elderly by donating 
funds for the playground. A new, creative mode 
of collecting funds was applied by installing two 
containers for selecting PET and ALU waste. 
Moreover, in cooperation with the media and 
elementary schools, Betežda invited students to 
collect waste for recycling. This way, along with 
developing the culture of giving and volunteering, 
the awareness of the protection of the environment 
was developed among young people.

An unexpected response was incited by a circular 
letter through which Betežda collected more than 
50,000.00 dinars from citizens, individually and 
through institutions. However, the best effect was 
achieved through direct, personal contact with 
citizens. It rarely happened that a plea for donation 
was rejected, and donations moved in the range 
between 100.00 and 5,000.00 dinars. According to 
the experience of Betežda, the key to this process 
was listening to the people and respecting social and 
cultural conditions of the community, and what was 
especially important was to present the purposes for 
investing the money.
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European Instrument for Democracy and Human Rights (EIDHR)
 http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/redirection/eidhr_en.htm
 		
Delegation of the European Union to the Republic of Serbia
http://www.europa.rs/
 		
Fund for an Open Society, Serbia
http://www.fosserbia.org/
 		
Ministry of Youth and Sport of the Republic of Serbia
http://www.mos.gov.rs/
 	
Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA)
http://www.acdi-cida.gc.ca/
 
Telenor Foundation, Serbia
http://www.telenor.rs/sr/O-Telenoru/Korporativna-odgovornost/Telenor-fondacija/

Freedom House, United States of America
http://www.freedomhouse.org/  
 	
The Balkan Trust for Democracy, United States of America
http://www.gmfus.org/balkantrust/

Rockefeller Brothers Fund, United States of America
http://www.rbf.org/

Co-operating Netherlands Foundations for Central and Eastern Europe, Netherlands  
http://www.cnfcee.nl/
 
Institute for sustainable communities, United States of America
http://www.iscserbia.org/
 		
United States Agency for International Development, United States of America 
http://www.usaid.gov/
 	
Charles Stewart Mott Foundation, United States of America
http://www.mott.org/
  	
UK Department for International Development
http://www.dfid.gov.uk/
 		
Global Fund for Community Foundations (GFCF)  
http://www.globalfundcommunityfoundations.org/
 		
Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Czech Republic
http://www.mzv.cz/jnp/
 	
ERSTE Bank JSC, Novi Sad
http://www.erstebank.rs/

BCIF’S DONORS 
AND PARTNERS

DONORS



/28 /29

Annual report 2010  /  Balkan community initiatives fund Annual report 2010  /  Balkan community initiatives fund

Office of Deputy Prime Minister for European Integration, Social Inclusion 
and Poverty Reduction Unit
http://www.inkluzija.gov.rs/

Office of Deputy Prime Minister for European Integration, 
National Sustaniable Development Strategy
http://www.odrzivi-razvoj.gov.rs/

National Assembly of the Republic of Serbia
http://www.parlament.gov.rs/

Ministry of Culture of the Republic of Serbia 
http://www.kultura.gov.rs/

Ministry of Environment and Spatial Planning
http://www.ekoplan.gov.rs/

Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Serbia
http://www.mfin.gov.rs/

Ministry of Labour and Social Policy of the Republic of Serbia
http://www.minrzs.gov.rs/cms/

National Bank of Serbia
http://www.nbs.rs/

Republic Institute for Social Protection
http://www.zavodsz.gov.rs/

Provincial Institute for Social Protection
http://www.pzsz.gov.rs/

The City of Belgrade, Agency for European Integration and Cooperation With Associations 
http://www.beograd.org.rs/

ERSTE Bank JSC., Novi Sad
http://www.erstebank.rs/

National Lottery of Serbia
http://www.lutrija.rs/

Holcim, Serbia
http://www.holcim.rs/

Telenor, Serbia
http://www.telenor.rs/

Coca-Cola HBC Serbia
http://www.coca-colahellenic.rs/

Asus, Serbia
http://www.asus.rs/

Ovation BBDO, Serbia
http://www.ovation.rs/ 

IIE/Philip Morris International, Serbia
http://www.iie.org/

VIA Foundation, Czech Republic
http://www.nadacevia.cz/

SCAN Foundation, Netherlands
http://www.skanfonds.nl/

SOFT Tulip foundation, Netherlands
http://www.softtulip.nl/

PARTNERS
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Project for Public Spaces, United States of America
http://www.pps.org/

Jefferson Institute, Serbia
http://www.jeffersoninst.org/
 	
Civic Initiatives, Serbia
http://www.gradjanske.org/
 		
National Coalition for Decentralization, Serbia
http://www.decentralizacija.org.rs/
 	
Smart Kolektiv, Serbia
http://www.smartkolektiv.org/

Ana and Vlade Divac Foundation (HOD), Serbia
http://www.divac.com/
 		
Media Center, Serbia
http://www.mc.rs/
  	
Ekonomeast Media Group, Serbia
http://www.emg.rs/

Web portal E-kapija, Serbia
http://www.ekapija.com/
 
Big Bang, Serbia
http://www.bigbang.rs/ 

Univereksport, Serbia
http://www.univerexport.rs/

Telekom Serbia
http://www.telekom.rs/
 		
VIP mobile, Serbia
http://www.vipmobile.rs
   
Ernst&Young, Serbia
http://www.ey.com/CS/en/Home
    
B92, Serbia
http://www.b92.net/
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BCIF`S Founders

• Jenny Hyatt, Chief Executive, Big White Wall Ltd, 
London, Great Britain
• Aco Divac, School Librarian and Teacher, West 
Acton Elementary School, London, Great Britain
• Dubravka Velat, Development Program Director, 
Civic Initatives, Belgrade, Serbia
• Snežana Stojanović, Social Worker and 
Consultant, Team TRI, Belgrade, Serbia
• Mia Vukojević, Humanitarian Program Manager, 
Oxfam, Canada

BCIF’S Management Board

• Branislav Ivin, President of the Management 
Board, Accountant, Konzul Agency, Zrenjanin, 
Serbia
• Dubravka Velat, Development Program Director, 
Civic Initatives, Belgrade, Serbia
• Julia Szanton, Partnership Development and 
Program Manager, NIZA (The Netherlands Institute 
for Southern Africa), Amsterdam, Netherlands
• Mia Vukojević, Humanitarian Program Manager, 
Oxfam, Canada
• Ružica Rosandić, Independent Consultant, 
London, UK
• Svetlana Logar, Research Director, Ipsos Strategic 
Marketing, Belgrade, Serbia

PEOPLE IN BCIF

• Nina Alimpić, Consultant at Microsoft and 
Computer Science and IT Teacher, Mathematical 
Grammar School, Belgrade
• Milko Štimac, Chairman of the Securities 
Commission of the Republic of Serbia, Belgrade, 
Serbia
• Vesna Cipruš, Consultant, UNDP (United Nations 
Development Programme), Belgrade, Serbia

BCIF’S Grant Committee for Social 
Transition Program

• Anna Bu, Deputy Director and Small Projects Fund, 
Ecumenical Humanitarian Organization, Novi Sad
• Bobana Macanović, Director, Autonomous Women 
Centre, Belgrade
• Ivana Ćirković, Director, Office for Cooperation 
with Civil Society, Government of the Republic of 
Serbia
• Mia Vukojević, BCIF’s Management Board 
Representative

BCIF’S Grant Committee for Active 
Communities Program

• Anna Bu, Deputy Director and Small Projects Fund, 
Ecumenical Humanitarian Organization, Novi Sad
• Zoran Filipović, Director, Regional Center for 
Professional Development of Education Personnel, 
Užice

• Sandra Stanić, Deputy Chief of Party for 
Programs, Institute for Sustainable Communities
• Dubravka Velat, BCIF’s Management Board 
Representative

BCIF‘S Staff

• Miodrag Shrestha, Executive Director
• Tanja Bjelanović, Program Director
• Snežana - Andreja Arambašić, Administrative and 
Finance Director
• Ivana Marković, Grant Programs Manager
• Ksenija Graovac, Philanthropy Program Manager
• Vladimir Radojičić, Project Manager
• Natalija Simović, Project Coordinator
• Marija Mitrović/Irina Ljubić, Project Manager
• Marija Jovančićević, Office Manager
• Irena Korićanac/Tijana Morača, Philanthropy 
Program Coordinators
• Jelena Mihailović, Project Coordinator
• Ljiljana Živković, Finance Coordinator
• Branko Marković, Promo and Web Coordinator

• Kristina Išić, Philanthropy Program Assistant
• Vjekoslav Vuković, Grant Programs Assistant
• Bora Pilipović, Administrative Assistant

BCIF’S Counselors

• Dragomir Pop-Mitić, Western Serbia
• Jasmina Knežević, Vojvodina
• Marko Košutić, Vojvodina
• Sead Biberović, Sandžak
• Snežana Stojanović, Belgrade and surroundings
• Srđan Mitrović, Southern Serbia
• Suzana Radovanović, Central and Eastern Serbia

Volunteers

All members of Management Board and Grant 
Committee work on a voluntary basis. Besides 
them, there are more volunteers who help with 
the work in our office: Saša Antić, Marek Mikuš, 
Maja Živković, Slađana Menjić Ćirić, Dijana 
Maloku, Jelena Šaranović.
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GRANTS IN 2010
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* Second installments of donations approved in 2009



/38 /39

* Second installments of donations approved in 2009

* Second installments of donations approved in 2009



/40 /41



/42 /43



/44 /45

* Second installments of donations approved in 2009



/46 /47



/48 /49

Annual report 2010  /  Balkan community initiatives fund Annual report 2010 /  Balkan community initiatives fund

FINANCIAL INFORMATON

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S OPINION

Those numbers have been taken from the report of the independent auditor for the period from January, 
1st, 2010 to December, 31st, 2010. The complete audit report may be found at BCIF website, and can also be 
received upon request addressed to BCIF office. 
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We would like to express our gratitude to all organisations 
as well as office manager 

Marija Jovančićević for photos they contributed 
to the Archive of BCIF.

BCIF is registered as the fund in
The Ministry of Culture of the Republic 
of Serbia

Registration Number:  415-0079/2003-14
Company Identification Number: 17522663
Tax ID Number:  103208903

Imprint

Publisher: Balkan Community Initiatives Fund
Editors: Tanja Bjelanović, Dragica Lazić
Technical support: Marija Jovančićević
Photos: Archive of BCIF
Design: Peđa Tomić
Translation: Ivana Andrić
English language editor: Gina Vukojević



Balkan Community Initiatives Fund
Majke Jevrosime 19/I, 106502 Belgrade
Serbia

Phone/Fax: + 381 11 328 8723  
E-mail: office@bcif.org 
www.bcif.org
    facebook.com/BCIFSrbija


